
Civic Centre, Windmill Street, Gravesend Kent DA12 1AU

 
 

 
 

Overview Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Members of the Overview Scrutiny Committee of Gravesham Borough Council are summoned 
to attend a meeting to be held at the Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Windmill Street, Gravesend 
DA12 1AU on Thursday, 9 June 2022 at 7.30 pm when the business specified in the following 
agenda is proposed to be transacted. 
 
 

 
S Walsh 
Service Manager (Communities) 
 
 

Agenda 
 

Part A 
Items likely to be considered in Public  

1. Apologies   
 
2. Minutes  (Pages 3 - 8) 
 
3. Declarations of interest   
 
4. To consider whether any items in Part A will be considered in private or any 

items in Part B in public  
 

 
5. Call ins   

 Items called in from the Cabinet meeting of 30 May 2022 
 
(Please ensure you have access to the Cabinet agenda for 30 May 2022 
previously circulated to Members). 
  
 

 

 
6. IT and Digital Strategy 2022  (Pages 9 - 36) 
 



7. Member Training 2021-22 - Annual Report  (Pages 37 - 46) 
 
8. Oral Update from the Sub-Group Chair on the progress of the Scrutiny 

Topic Review  
 

 
9. Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair is 

of the opinion should be considered as a matter of urgency.  
 

 
10. Private Items   

 To move, if required, that pursuant to section 100A (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 that the public be excluded from any items 
included in Part B of the agenda because it is likely in view of the nature 
of business to be transacted that if members of the public are present 
during those items, there would be disclosure to them of exempt 
information as defined in Part 1 of schedule 12A of the Act. 
 

 

 
Part B 

 
Items likely to be considered in private 

  
11. Call ins   

 Items called in from the Cabinet meeting of 30 May 2022 
 
(Please ensure you have access to the Cabinet agenda for 30 May 2022 
previously circulated to Members). 
 

 

 
 
 
Members 
 
Cllr Jordan Meade (Chair) 
Cllr Baljit Hayre (Vice-Chair) 
 
Councillors: Gurjit Kaur Bains 

Gurdip Ram Bungar 
Sarah Gow 
Leslie Hills 
Lyn Milner 
Emma Morley 
Diane Morton 
 

 
Substitutes: To be notified 
 
 
 



1

Overview Scrutiny Committee 
 

Thursday, 31 March 2022 7.30 pm 
 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Jordan Meade (Chair)  
 
Councillors: Gurjit Kaur Bains 

John Caller 
Sarah Gow 
Leslie Hills 
Diane Morton 
Brian Sangha 
Peter Scollard 
Gurbax Singh 
 

 
Also in attendance: Cllr John Burden, Leader of the Executive and Cllr Narinderjit Singh 

Thandi, Cabinet Member for Performance & Administration 
  
  
Daniel Killian Director (Housing) 
Sarah Parfitt Director (Corporate Services) 
Nicole Arthur  Service Manager (Housing Operations) 
Chris Wakeford  Committee Services Officer - Scrutiny (Minutes)   
 
 
 
 
32. Apologies  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Gurdip Ram Bungar and Cllr Baljit Hayre; Cllr 
Brian Sangha and Cllr John Caller appeared as their respective substitutes. 
 
33. Minutes  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Overview Scrutiny Committee held on 10 February 2022 
were signed by the Chair. 
 
34. Declarations of interest  
 
Cllr Gow declared an Other Significant Interest in Item 9. Call in - Cabinet Item 15. 
Establishment of Rosherville Repairs & Maintenance Local Authority Trading Company (Part 
B) due to the fact she is an appointed Director of Rosherville Limited, the Council’s Local 
Authority Trading Company. Cllr Gow advised that she would leave the Council Chamber 
when this item was being considered. 

Page 3 Agenda Item 2



Overview Scrutiny Committee 31.03.2022

2

 
35. Call in - Cabinet Item 10. Support for energy bills - the Council Tax  

Rebate 2022/2023  
 
The Director (Corporate Services) informed Members that on 3 February 2022, the 
Government announced a package of support known as the Energy Bills Rebate to help 
households with rising energy bills, worth £9.1 billion in 2022-2023. This included:- 
 

  £200 discount on their energy bill this autumn for domestic electricity customers in 
Great Britain. This will be paid back automatically over the next 5 years; 

  £150 non-repayable rebate for households in England in council tax bands A – D, 
known as the Council Tax Rebate; and 

  £144 million of discretionary funding for billing authorities to support households who 
are in need but are not eligible for the Council Tax Rebate, known as the 
Discretionary Fund. 
 

The Director (Corporate Services) informed Members of the following: 
 
Council Tax Rebate 2022-23 

  The Council had been allocated £5,297,100 for the core scheme of Council Tax 
Rebate 2022-2023. This was equivalent of paying £150 to 35,314 households, which 
was required to be distributed to eligible households by 30 September 2022 

  Where the Council holds live direct debit instructions for a liable council taxpayer of 
an eligible household (currently 27,000 for GBC), the guidance states that an 
automatic payment should be made as early as possible in the 2022-23 financial 
year, provided that there was assurance that the household was eligible and the 
bank details had been verified. 

  The Council has an estimated 16,000 households to contact and take through a 
process to obtain and verify bank details before payment of the Council Tax Rebate. 

  The Council anticipates that around 900 of these households will not be eligible for 
the scheme (e.g. empty households or households that fall into the exempt category) 

  The title of the scheme is misleading and can cause confusion to recipients; it’s not a 
rebate and operates outside of Council Tax. 

 
Discretionary Fund 

  The Council has been allocated £249,150 for the Discretionary Fund. This was 
equivalent of paying £150 to 1,661 households, which was required to be distributed 
by 30 November 2022.  

  The guidance advised that the Council could determine locally how best to make use 
of this funding to provide payments to other households who were energy bill payers 
but not covered by the Council Tax Rebate. This could include households living in 
properties valued in bands E – H (currently 6,463 properties) that were on income 
related benefits such as Council Tax Reduction (currently 233 claimants in bands E-
H) or those where the energy bills payers were not liable for council tax. The Director 
(Corporate Services) advised that the intention would be to work closely with 
colleagues across Kent to ensure commonality with the discretionary scheme.  

  Cabinet granted delegated authority to the Director (Corporate Services), in 
consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Performance & Administration, to develop a 
discretionary Council Tax Rebate scheme and associated policy, and to make the 
necessary arrangements to assess eligibility and determine award of funding to 
eligible households. Delegated authority was also granted to the Director (Corporate 

Page 4



Overview Scrutiny Committee 31.03.2022

3

Services) to make any further technical amendments to the scheme where further 
government advice is issued and ensure that the Portfolio Holder for Performance & 
Administration is kept informed of any such amendments required. 

 
 
Following questions from the Committee, the Director (Corporate Services) highlighted the 
following: 
 
 

  The Council are getting a number of enquiries about the Council Tax Rebate and 
there is some confusion for members of the public on this matter. The Council is 
putting as much information as possible on its website and the Local Government 
Association are also doing a media campaign. This area is challenging when the 
misleading message that this is a ‘rebate’ is portrayed in the press. Members can 
play an important role and help get the message across and this would be helpful to 
the Council 

  A task and finish group will be formed next week to develop processes, ensure the 
support is distributed correctly and that communications are put out through all 
available channels.  

  The Council Tax Rebate is a flat £150 payment for each household. 
  Bank details will be checked using a tool called Spotlight. The Council will then run 

through the process to make sure the bank details match the person the Council is 
trying to get the money to. 

  There is wide guidance on the Discretionary Fund but this will have to be carefully 
consider to make sure it is targeted in the right way. The Council is expecting further 
guidance from government on how the money is directed. 

  There is a typo at the end of paragraph 4.2 of the report that should refer to 
‘householders’ not ‘businesses’. 

  The Council will communicate directly with those who haven’t taken up the support 
and every effort will be made to get the money to them. 

  The Council Tax Rebate will be paid to the principal Council Tax payer. This will be 
the landlord in some cases and it will be down to them to pass on the payment to the 
residents of the property. 

  The Director (Corporate Services) agreed to circulate the figures, outside of the 
meeting, for the amount of people who use PayPoint and those that use cash to pay 
their Council Tax. 

  The Council is trying to find the most secure way to get the money out to eligible 
households. Cash will be avoided where possible and alternative methods such as 
prepaid cards, an arrangement with the Post Office or applying the Council Tax 
rebate to the individuals Council Tax account (as a last resort) will be looked into. 

  Lobbying has been undertaken by the Local Government Association (LGA) and 
others to The Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities and it has 
been made clear that this is not a scheme that the Council are best placed to deal 
with. 

  The Council is expecting an announcement from central government on ‘new 
burdens’ funding; once this is known the Council can make a full assessment on 
whether these matters will have to be dealt with using existing resources or, if 
additional resources are required, whether these will be fully met by central 
government. Conversations have already begun with Kent colleagues to consider 
resources. 

Page 5



Overview Scrutiny Committee 31.03.2022

4

  The Council will do its best to distribute as much of the Council Tax rebate as 
possible but it is reliant on people giving the Council the information we need and this 
will take time; payments are unlikely to get through until the end of April due to the 
intention to use the April Direct Debit process to provide assurance of the accuracy of 
bank details held. 

  Based on the government guidance, the Discretionary Fund will look to support those 
in Band E-H and will target those who can’t benefit from Council Tax rebate.  

  The Council does have a register of Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) so these 
can be identified and attempts made to communicate. 

  The Homes for Ukraine Scheme is a separate scheme and will involve £10,500 per 
placement going to KCC, payment of £200 per refugee, £350 to the sponsor per 
month. There is a meeting tomorrow to finalise the detail. 

  Measures will be put in place to prevent and detect fraud as far as is possible (e.g. 
Spotlight - bank account authentication tool, internal audit checks, pre-payment 
checks). 

  The potential for confusion and cancellation of Direct Debits after payment is made is 
a concern but requests to set up Direct Debits are coming in thick and fast at the 
moment. 

  The Council will give some thought to getting the message out that this is not a 
refund on Council Tax. 

  The Council will look to engage with community groups to make sure we are giving 
them the right message. Members have a big role to play here.  

  The Council will look to publicise the support for energy bills at community events 
such as Vaisakhi, Eid, Riverside Festival etc. 

  The issues with the My Account system have been logged with the provider 
Northgate. The problems were due to volume of traffic and the advice was to come 
back and try later. Northgate are looking to rectify the problem. 

  The Director (Corporate Services) will look into the possibility of a post payment 
check / flag being placed on the My Account system. 

  The Council will utilise the Landlords Network to push out the message on the 
support for energy bills. 

 
The Cabinet Member for Performance & Administration advised Members that a further 
report back on the support for energy bills will go to the Performance & Administration 
Committee and could also come to the Overview Scrutiny Committee if desired. 
 

Resolved that the Committee noted the report on the Support for energy bills - the 
Council Tax Rebate 2022/2023 

 
 
Note: Cllr Narinderjit Singh Thandi, Cabinet Member for Performance & Administration, 
spoke with the leave of the Chair on this item. 
 
 
36. Oral Update from the Sub-Group Chair on the progress of the Scrutiny  

Topic Review.  
 
In the absence of Cllr Baljit Hayre, Cllr Sarah Gow provided the following update on the 
Scrutiny Review of Street Cleanliness, littering, and Fly-tipping throughout the Borough: 

Page 6



Overview Scrutiny Committee 31.03.2022

5

  The Sub-Group met in-person on 3 March 2022 where the group met ‘Street 
Champions’ who highlighted the following: 

- The Street Champions should be publicised better to recruit more people 
- The Street Champions are keen to extend their role further. They would like 

school students to get involved and would like to see more recycling points in 
the Borough.  

- The Street Champions advised that it was a challenge for them to report fly-
tipping.  

- The Street Champions were awarded a certificate of excellence. 
- The Street Champions were very complimentary about GBC staff, especially 

Joel Simons - Waste Projects & Compliance Officer. 
  Apologies for absence were received from the two Conservative Members on the 

sub-group. 
  KCC have stopped funding for joint enforcement, but officers will speak to the Kent 

Police and Crime Commissioner to look at other sources of funding. 
  Members of the sub-group will visit a school to see the Council’s talk on refuse and 

recycling and will also visit the Brookvale Depot to look at the setup / operations. 

The Committee noted the progress of the Scrutiny Review of Street Cleanliness, littering, 
and Fly-tipping throughout the Borough. 

 
37. Exclusion  
 
Resolved that pursuant to Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 that the 
public be excluded from any item included in Part B of the agenda because it is likely in view 
of the nature of business to be transacted that if members of the public mare present during 
this item, there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 
38. Call in - Cabinet Item 15. Establishment of Rosherville Repairs  

Maintenance Local Authority Trading Company (Part B)  
 
The Overview Scrutiny Committee considered, and discussed in detail, the Part B 
information pertaining to the establishment of Rosherville Repairs & Maintenance Local 
Authority Trading Company. 
 
The Committee considered the robustness of the proposals and evaluated the impact that 
the establishment of the company may have on staffing resource and existing service 
provision. 
 
 

Resolved that the Committee noted the Part B report on the establishment of 
Rosherville Repairs & Maintenance Local Authority Trading Company 
 

 
Note: Cllr John Burden, Leader of the Executive, spoke with the leave of the Chair on this 
item. 
 
Note: Cllr Sarah Gow left the room when this item was being considered. 
 

Page 7



Overview Scrutiny Committee 31.03.2022

6

 
 
 Close of meeting  
 
The meeting ended at 9.41 pm 
 

Page 8



Classification: Public 
Key Decision: No 

Gravesham Borough Council 

Report to: Cabinet 
Overview Scrutiny Committee 
 

Date: 30th May 2022 
9th June 2022 
 

Reporting officer: Director (Corporate Services) 

Subject: IT and Digital Strategy 2022 

Purpose and summary of report:  
To inform member of the new Information Technology and Digital Strategy covering the 
period 2022-2026 

Recommendations: 
1. This report is for information only. 

 

Key Implications: 
Item Implications 
Legal None 

Finance and Value for 
Money 

Resourcing for projects arising from the strategy will be subject to 
individual business cases which will describe the required IT 
investment in greater detail. 

Corporate Plan The IT and Digital Strategy will underpin corporate policies, 
strategies, and business plans to support the delivery of all three 
corporate objectives (people, place and progress) as part of the 
‘Golden Thread’, a continuous cycle connecting the corporate 
aims, policy framework and delivery plans of the council, with the 
actions of Members, officers, and partners at all levels. 

Climate Change  The IT and Digital Strategy supports flexible / remote working 
which reduces the amount of travel required by staff, saving CO2 
emissions related to transport. The strategy also supports the 
greater use of cloud technologies which improves the efficiency of 
electricity consumption using economies of scale (large data 
centres are more energy efficient than our small data centre) 

 
 

1. Introduction 

1.1 Previously the council has had two separate strategies, one for Information 
Technology and one for Digital. 

Page 9 Agenda Item 6



2

1.2 The Information Technology Strategy covered infrastructure, such as servers, 
desktop and laptop computers, mobile devices and telephony. The IT Strategy 
also covered support of the councils business applications which underpin the 
delivery of services by all directorates. 

1.3 The Digital Strategy covered how IT is utilised, which included public facing 
systems (such as the website) and transformation of business applications to 
provide more efficient end to end processes and improved user experience for the 
public. 

1.4 Over time these two areas have increasingly overlapped such that it now makes 
sense to combine them both into a single overarching strategy. 

2. The Strategy 

2.1 The overall aim of the strategy is to provide a clear direction of travel for the IT 
and Digital Teams in order to deliver the technology platforms required by the 
council. 

2.2 This direction is articulated via a number of Ambitions, Principles and Objectives. 

2.3 The contents of the strategy has taken into account the changes in working 
environment brought about by the Covid-19 pandemic, increasing expectation by 
our customers for technology focussed services, the impacts of our activity on 
climate change, improving resilience to a cyber-attack, and the move to new office 
accommodation in 2025/2026. 

2.4 During the life of the strategy, investment in IT and Digital will be required. 
Individual business cases will be built which will describe the changes in greater 
detail and identify sources of funding, any impacts on the Medium Term Financial 
Plan and IT Reserve. 

2.5 The portfolio holder for Digital and IT is the Leader of the Executive. The 
monitoring and reporting of our progress against the strategy will be regularly 
taken through the Corporate Management Team to the Leader of the Executive, 
Cabinet, and other committees where there is an overlap of interest (such as the 
Finance and Audit Committee, and the Performance and Administration 
Committee).  

2.6 In addition to this, council members will be briefed on the progress of 
implementing the strategy via annual training sessions. 

3. Appendices 

3.1 The following documents are to be published with the report: 

IT & Digital Strategy 2022-2026 

4. Background Documents  

4.1 There are no background documents. 

 

Lead Officer:  Darren Everden, Assistant Director (IT & Transformation) 

Email:  darren.everden@gravesham.gov.uk 

Page 10



3

 
Secondary Implications  
Risk Assessment The IT and Digital Strategy contains and Assumptions and Risk section which sets 

out the implications of the strategy. 

A data protection impact assessment (DPIA) should be carried out at the start of 
any major project involving the use of personal data or if you are making a 
significant change to an existing process.  
a. Does the project/change being recommended through this paper involve the 

processing of personal data or special category data or criminal offence data?  
A definition of each type of data can be found on the Information 
Commissioner’s Office website via the above links. 
No 

b. If yes to question a, have you completed and attached a DPIA including Data 
Protection Officer advice? 
N/A 

Data Protection 
Impact Assessment 
 

c. If no to question b, please seek advice from your nominated DPIA assessor or 
the Information Governance Team at gdpr@medway.gov.uk. 
N/A 

a. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper have 
potential to cause adverse impact or discriminate against different groups in the 
community? If yes, please explain answer. 
No 

b. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper make a 
positive contribution to promoting equality? If yes, please explain answer. 
No 

Equality Impact 
Assessment 

In submitting this report, the Chief Officer doing so is confirming that they have 
given due regard to the equality impacts of the decision being considered, as noted 
in the table above 

Crime and Disorder None 

Digital and website 
implications 

The strategy seeks to improve the delivery of our digital and website services. 

Safeguarding 
children and 
vulnerable adults 

None 

Page 11

https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/key-definitions/what-is-personal-data/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/special-category-data/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/criminal-offence-data/
mailto:gdpr@medway.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Information Technology and Digital Strategy 
2022-2026 

 

P
age 13



2 | P a g e

Foreword from the Leader 
 
Our IT and digital services underpin everything we do. 

They provide gateways for our residents and businesses who are increasingly turning to digital routes to access our services and manage 
their business with us, and they provide our officers with the tools to support and serve our communities. 

We pride ourselves on being a listening and accessible council, and digital channels and reliable and secure IT networks make it quick and 
easy for our residents to reach us. 

Recent years have seen the way the world works change dramatically, and both public and private sector organisations have had to 
integrate new systems and technologies quickly to keep pace and adapt. 

All that we learned in that period of great flux has helped shape this strategy which ensures this organisation is in a position to grow and 
evolve its crucial systems and networks. 

This IT and Digital Strategy sets out clearly how we will deliver continual improvements to our service, ensuring it is now and will remain fit 
for purpose and is able to adapt to changes in both technology and demand. 

Through its adoption we are ensuring this authority has the IT and Digital capability to support our many and varied service teams in 
delivering a Gravesham to be proud of.   

 

Cllr John Burden 
Leader of the Executive 
 

 

P
age 14



3 | P a g e

Introduction 
 
Corporate Plan 
The Corporate Plan has set out the scale of the council’s ambition and the core objectives and commitments required in delivering a 
Gravesham to be proud of. To be successful, it is vital that all corporate policies, strategies, and business plans are fully informed, 
designed and resourced to support the delivery of our corporate objectives. The Information Technology and Digital Strategy will underpin 
and support these objectives as part of the ‘Golden Thread’, a continuous cycle connecting the corporate aims, policy framework and 
delivery plans of the council, with the actions of Members, officers, and partners at all levels. 
 
Information Technology and Digital Together 
Information Technology is the infrastructure used by the council. It is the computers, communication systems (phone and email), business 
applications, networks, and the officers that support those layers. 
 
Digital on the other hand is how we utilise the Information Technology to deliver services to employees, customers, and other stakeholders 
online. 
 
This strategy recognises the intrinsic link between Information Technology and Digital disciplines and brings them together to present a 
cohesive vision and set of objectives centred around two goals – transforming how Information Technology systems are used and 
reshaping how the Information Technology function provides its services. 

 
The target audience of this strategy is therefore both internal to the council (Members and officers) and external (customers and other 
stakeholders), 
 
  

P
age 15



4 | P a g e

Understanding the Current Service 
 
Gathering relevant information about the current service enables us to better target our resources and make fully informed decisions when 
designing change for service improvement. Below are a few headline statistics on where we are now. 

 
Embracing Change 
The working environment and how we deliver our services to customers has changed significantly since early 2020. Necessity brought 
rapid change around remote working, and any concerns expressed in the past about the effectiveness of a workforce not tied to an office 
were proven wrong. This latest Information Technology and Digital Strategy comes at a pivotal time when we can lean in on the benefits 
brought about by large scale remote working, fully embrace the changes, and design a future where work is smarter, and the benefits can 
filter down to our customers. 
 
In recognition of the changing landscape, the IT Service has undergone a significant review to ensure the delivery of this strategy is 
achievable. The Digital and IT teams have been aligned under a single Service Manager to ensure back-office technology supports front 
line services in a joined-up way, and agile project management can be embedded in everything we do. 
 
Our vision is to provide a flexible working environment for staff which enables services to be delivered from any location at any time 
without technology being an impediment. Our services will be joined up and efficient, providing an excellent user experience for our 
customers whilst meeting their demands. 
 
 
 

500 Employees 44 Councillors 21 IT & Digital 
Staff

4,800 IT 
support 

requests per 
year

91% IT support 
requests 

resolved in 
target

15,000 emails 
processed per 

day

259,279 online 
forms 

submitted per 
year

5,733 online 
council tax 
accounts

£10.4m in 
payments 
collected 

through the 
website per 

year

P
age 16



5 | P a g e

Plan on a page 
 

  

Ambitions

Improve digital capability

Accelerate channel shift

Working smarter

Innovation

Principles
Accessibility

Secure by default

Concentrate on information, not 
infrastructure

Any device, anywhere, anytime

Buy, don’t build

Information Technology Self Service

Technology confidence in the wider 
workforce

Objectives
Supporting a flexible organisation

Cloud migration

Improving data quality through 
standards

Enabling use of data analytics and 
business intelligence

Growing digital capability

Reducing duplicated functionality

Continual improvement of 
information security

P
age 17



6 | P a g e

Our Ambitions 
We have four ambitions we are aiming to deliver over the course of this strategy. 
 

1. Improve digital capability 
Services delivered digitally are no use unless those delivering and consuming the services have the confidence, skills and 
knowledge with the technology being used. Investment and training in digital skills for council officers, members and residents will 
be crucial for the successful rollout of new services. We will ensure that officers within the council are provided with the information 
and support required for the use of modern technology, and council members are provided with an effective training programme to 
take advantage of new facilities available for their role with the council and constituents. We will work with other partnership 
organisations to support residents and ensure policies and assistance is in place to address digital inclusion. 
 

2. Accelerate channel shift 
The foundations put in place because of this strategy will assist the adoption of new digitally delivered services. Providing a good 
customer experience in a way that is convenient to the service user will drive our programme forward. We will ensure that the 
replacement and upgrade of back-office systems provides the opportunity to improve the digital delivery of services. 
 

3. Working smarter 
Smarter working empowers us all to make the right decisions about where, when, and how we work. By optimising the use of 
workplace and technology, we can improve productivity through a focus on outputs and enable a better work life balance for all. 
Council officers and members will be provided with modern, fit for purpose digital tools to enable them to carry out their work in the 
most efficient way. Working with technology should be a pleasure rather than a hindrance. We will consult with stakeholders to 
understand the requirements and preferences of end users to ensure we are providing the correct hardware and software. 
 

4. Innovation 
Innovation cannot come without creativity. We will nurture and embrace ways to discover opportunities for work to be done better, 
differently and in new ways. Innovation not only has a role to play in our own quest for efficiency and productivity but also in the 
wider context of action required to mitigate climate change through human activity. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 18



7 | P a g e

Our Principles 
 
When delivering this strategy, we will be led by the following guiding principles. 
 

1. Accessibility 
Our services should be accessible by all, and digital services must be designed with this in mind. Consideration should be given to 
users dependent upon assistive technology for to ensure they are provided with the best user experience while accessing council 
services. Digital inclusion should also be considered during the design process and appropriate measures put in place to ensure 
that the service can be accessed equally by all. 
 

2. Secure by default 
Council services (both back office and public facing) must be secure and not present a risk of cyber-attack or data breach. Modern 
encryption standards should be used to secure data and appropriate technical controls (such as multifactor authentication and 
security posture monitoring) should be as transparent and easy to use as possible. Creating security through complexity is a false 
economy and can lead to work arounds which are less secure. 
 

3. Concentrate on information, not infrastructure 
When designing new digital services, we will concentrate on the service itself rather than the infrastructure being used for delivery. 
By decoupling information from infrastructure, we remove a constraint which could compromise the outcome we are trying to 
achieve. We will put the customer at the heart of service design and build services around their needs. 
 

4. Any device, anywhere, anytime 
This principle applies to both customer access to council services, and staff access to back-office systems. We must embrace 
access to services from different types of devices irrespective of location and time of day. 
 
For customers accessing council digital services, this will mean the service will work equally well on a desktop computer, laptop 
computer, tablet, or smartphone, irrespective of manufacturer or operating system. 
 
For officers this will mean work can be done equally as well in the office or at home using a desktop or laptop computer, or out in 
the field using a laptop computer, tablet, or smartphone. 
 

5. Buy, don’t build 

P
age 19



8 | P a g e

We need to use our staff resources wisely and developing bespoke software for a service where there is commodity off the shelf 
alternatives is not an effective use of resources. Our priority when assessing the best approach should be purchasing solutions 
before considering building them ourselves. 

 
6. Information Technology Self Service 

Digital services should be available for our own internal use in the same way we provide digital services for external customers. 
Self-service is an efficient way to use staff resources and provide a resilient and improved service which is always available 
whatever the time of day. We will proactively identify and implement areas where joined up self service solutions can assist with 
Information Technology service delivery. 
 

7. Technology confidence in the wider workforce 
We will support staff and provide relevant training to improve the confidence of the workforce in using technology. The role of 
project support officers in both the Microsoft 365 and Telephony projects has shown the benefits that support can bring to large 
corporate change projects. Adopting a similar approach for future projects will grow the confidence and capability of officers in using 
technology to the benefit of our services and customers. 

  

P
age 20



9 | P a g e

Our Objectives 
 
The objectives we aim to achieve through this strategy are as follows. 
 

1. Supporting a flexible organisation 
Now, more than ever, we need to be flexible in the way we deliver our services. Expectations by staff and our customers are higher 
than ever, and we need to meet these expectations by delivering appropriate, fit for purpose, technology solutions. By building on 
our hybrid work policy, we will provide a secure working environment which enables council operations to be delivered from any 
location at any time. 
 
Our intended outcomes for this objective are: 

  All council staff have access to work devices that as well as being modern, fit for purpose and help them do their jobs, are 
also easy and enjoyable to use. 

  Council staff can work from anywhere (not including jobs which need to be done in a specific location, such as parks and 
open spaces), with an equally good experience. This includes reliable systems access, sufficient bandwidth and telephony, 
with the right assistive technology for those who need it. 

  All corporately held collaboration tools are held in the cloud, meaning people can work together, share and store data 
efficiently no matter where they are. 

  Our people feel confident using modern technology, are aware of its risks and opportunities, and can fully participate in agile 
delivery and service design. 

  Staff can find the information they need about the council quickly and easily on the intranet. 
  Our senior leadership exemplifies digital thinking, empowering their teams to get closer to resident experience and use 

technology to experiment. 
  Customer outcomes will be improved via an empowered workforce using modern, fit for purpose technology. 

 
To do this we will: 

  Equip all staff who need it with a mobile device. 
  Move to the cloud for all productivity tools and documents. 
  Redesign our desktop estate and office layout to take account of the increased use of mobile devices. 
  Use videoconferencing across our estate. 
  Review current processes for providing assistive technology for staff with disabilities, ensuring we make the best use of 

available technology to support all our people. 

P
age 21



10 | P a g e

 
2. Cloud migration 

Many of our IT systems are now delivered via the cloud, and this transition will continue. When selecting cloud solutions, the order 
of preference continues to be; 

1. Software as a Service 
2. Platform as a Service 
3. Infrastructure as a Service 

Our aim is to have no on premise servers by 2026, with the majority of systems to be delivered via the cloud and any residual 
servers being hosted in an external data centre. By ceasing to host our own servers we leverage economies of scale for data centre 
energy usage and reduce greenhouse gas emissions, supporting the councils net zero carbon target of 2030. 
 
Our intended outcomes for this objective are: 

  We have full control over the data in all our back-office systems, and can extract and analyse that data to improve services  
  Staff are not physically constrained in any way as to where or how they access systems and data  
  We have a clear architectural vision and roadmap  
  We have a cost-efficient and resilient technology estate, centrally managed and regularly reviewed to prove value for money  
  Our people have a streamlined, intuitive, and seamless experience of line of business systems.  

 
To do this we will: 

  Develop a clear architectural vision for all council technology systems, working towards a small number of specialist systems 
supported by shared components that provide common functions once, integrated through APIs (Application Programming 
Interface), using cloud and Software as a Service solutions wherever possible  

  Fully map our systems, technologies, and assets, allowing us to prioritise improvements and meet common needs more 
easily 

  Fully account for the 14 Cloud Security Principles advocated by the National Cyber Security Centre 
(https://www.ncsc.gov.uk/collection/cloud-security) in our designs 

  Build a cloud hosting platform so that all services can use a corporate platform and not need to procure their own hosting  
  Migrate all our major services to the cloud (and smaller ones if it makes financial sense)  
  Build a full picture of the carbon footprint of our technology estate, then embark on a greening programme to reduce that 

footprint and help make the council more sustainable  
  Write new interoperability standards so that we do not have to commission suppliers to help with complex integration 
  Build integration points and automation between systems where a lack of interoperability means significantly worse services 

for residents and can take a lot of time for staff to deal with  

P
age 22

https://www.ncsc.gov.uk/collection/cloud-security


11 | P a g e

  Review and refresh all back-office systems against this blueprint, helping service areas transition to modern, cloud-based 
technology that is disaggregated away from few, large suppliers to many smaller ones and with specialist services built in-
house  

  Fully review and refresh all existing technology policies, ensuring the deal between the council, its residents and its staff is 
clear  

  Deliver an ongoing portfolio of improvements to council systems, corporate technology, and removal of sub-optimal or paper-
based council processes, prioritised on a clear roadmap  

  Use cross-government open platforms like gov.uk Notify to reduce the cost of common needs like text messaging. 
 

 
3. Improving data quality through standards 

So we can better support joined up digital services across the organisation, a minimum set of standards are required to ensure we 
are storing data consistently. When back-office systems contain good quality data, it makes the process of changing to a better 
system in the future more straightforward and is also an enabler for end-to-end digital services. We will support services in 
determining what the minimum standard should be for their business systems and provide guidance on training staff to meet those 
standards. 
 
Our intended outcomes for this objective are: 

  Service areas have all the data they need to protect and improve service for their users  
  We have a clear and comprehensive understanding of our residents, businesses, partners, and visitors needs, both 

qualitatively and quantitatively, so that we can improve outcomes for and with them  
  We publish data that others can build on. 

 
To do this we will: 

  Work with business areas on a programme of work to establish documented data standard and staff training materials for 
each line of business application. 

  Carry out a full data privacy review of the council, followed by a data cleansing and reduction programme, making sure we 
are not holding anything we should not be, deduplicating records and making our data extractable. 

 
 

4. Enabling use of data analytics and business intelligence 
Using the data we hold for insight and operational decisions will improve the efficiency of the council. As we introduce new systems 
across the organisation, we will do so with an eye on future use for data analytics and business intelligence. We will begin by 

P
age 23



12 | P a g e

growing our experience in Microsoft PowerBI and integrating our Geographic Information System to enable spatial analysis to be 
conducted. As we move into 2026, we expect to have the foundations in place to enable business intelligence to be used routinely 
across the council. 
 
Our intended outcomes for this objective are: 

  We can get insights from our data that help us be more efficient and effective  
  We have the right infrastructure to share data and insights with partner organisations in the local area and nationally, so that 

we all get better together 
 
To do this we will: 

  Build an analytics function which anyone in the council can draw on as a resource to help them better understand their 
business and users. 

  Engineer our systems data to make it easy to combine and analyse, including multiple deep dives into business systems. 
  Work with suppliers to get better access to our own data. 
  Build better reporting and insight on a service-by-service basis so people can truly understand their customer base. 

 
 

5. Growing digital capability 
Supporting officers and members in their use of technology will enable more effective remote working and embed digital within the 
organisation as the main method of accessing council services. In partnership with the Committee Section and Human Resources 
department, we will develop a training programme for improving digital skills and hold regular learning events to answer questions 
and provide bite sized training sessions on key IT competencies. 
 
Our intended outcomes for this objective are: 

  We are proud of our in-house information technology and digital team. 
  All our people feel confident in their knowledge and skills around the technology they need to do their jobs. 
  Our top tier leaders are educated in the impact of digital technology and are ambassadors inside and outside the 

organisation for technology innovation. 
  We can adapt quickly from project to project, using our existing teams to help the council prioritise and meet its needs. 
  The council becomes a destination for the digital, technology and data skills market, and can hire, retain and develop the 

best talent locally and nationally. 
 
To do this we will: 

P
age 24



13 | P a g e

  Create or bring in mandatory learning and development for all staff so that they fully understand how to use council 
technology, as well as understanding the basics of data privacy, cyber security, software development, service design and 
agile ways of working. 

  Develop digital leadership capability within the council, in line with the Local Digital Declaration, prioritising the corporate 
leadership team (the top three tiers of council officers) and council members 

  Partner with business areas across the council to co-create service transformation plans enabled by technology - and then 
deliver on them 

  Bring service design and product thinking to the council by developing our staff, including increasing awareness of user-
centred design and agile software development 

  Build career pathways for our digital, technology and data team, ensuring we can retain, develop, and fulfil them 
  Work continuously with other councils, government bodies and the civic sector to share learning, work together and improve. 

 
 

6. Reducing duplicated functionality 
Over time, IT systems have evolved and gained new features. Sometimes functionality overlaps with other systems. To reduce the 
support burden, systems need to be rationalised and duplicate functionality eliminated. A review of systems and functions will be 
undertaken, and duplication will be driven out to reduce the estate of supported systems. 
 
Our intended outcomes for this objective are: 

  Council technology provides demonstrable value for money, with the right tool for the right job and integration points between 
services which allow them to easily speak to each other. 

 
To do this we will: 

  Bring in new service desk software and processes to create a modern support function and a better self-service experience 
for staff. 

  Modernise our mobile device handling and software deployment so staff are properly supported. 
  Redesign our internal processes and governance structures, freeing up officer time for high-value tasks and frontline 

services. 
 
 

7. Continual improvement of information security 
The threat landscape is continually evolving, and the council must take account of this in protecting the security and integrity of its 
systems. Improving our proactive capabilities by adopting a Security Operations Centre approach to monitor our systems is a key 

P
age 25



14 | P a g e

requirement of moving to a cloud-based environment. Achieving compliance with security regulations such as the Public Services 
Network (PSN) Code of Connection requires a holistic view of our estate, and by implementing new arrangements we will help 
improve our overall security posture to keep Gravesham safe from a cyber-attack. 
 
Our intended outcomes for this objective are: 

  We have a mature approach to security, meaning we can protect our staff and residents from being exploited. 
  We maintain a high level of preparedness to react to any cyber-attack. 
  We comply with all applicable cyber security certifications for our environment. 

 
To do this we will: 

  Take a secure by default approach with new systems and upgrades 
  Maintain high levels of user awareness training for cyber risks. 
  Develop cyber security maturity and capability within the information technology team aligned with analysis from risk 

assessments based upon industry leading standards. 
 

 

 

P
age 26



15 | P a g e

Resourcing 
 
As the need arises for specific funding to enable the implementation of the IT Strategy, we will build an individual business case describing 
the IT investments in greater detail. At the same time, we will identify agreed sources of funding to assess the impact on the Medium-Term 
Financial Plan and the IT Reserve. 
  
The shift in industry approaches to acquiring IT systems away from on-premises solutions to cloud-based systems results in most software 
acquisitions using a subscription model, as opposed to acquisition of tangible assets such as hardware and perpetual licences. 
Consequently, new investments will likely be on a per annum subscription basis along with accompanying implementation and set up 
costs. 
  
The IT team delivering the strategy is made up of 18 full time equivalent posts. When implementing the IT Strategy, we will assess the 
departmental staff structure and individual roles and responsibilities to ensure the delivery of our objectives are sustainable. 
  
It is important to note that the IT strategy cannot guarantee that financial or business benefits are derived directly from it. Benefit and return 
will rely on the ambition of the organisation to use the capabilities provided. These will enable reconfiguration of operating models and re-
design of service delivery. It is clear from the experience of others in local government and other industry sectors that, with appropriate 
investment in up to date and effective IT solutions, significant and far-reaching redesign of services can be achieved. Benefit is achieved 
through release of resource, enhanced productivity, and an improved customer experience. 
 
 

P
age 27



16 | P a g e

Governance 
 
The portfolio holder for Digital and IT is the Leader of the Executive. The monitoring and reporting of our progress against the strategy will 
be regularly taken through the Corporate Management Team to the Leader of the Executive, Cabinet, and other committees where there is 
an overlap of interest (such as the Finance and Audit Committee, and the Performance and Administration Committee). 
 
In addition to this, council members will be briefed on the progress of implementing the strategy via annual training sessions. 
 
 
 

P
age 28



17 | P a g e

Assumptions and Risk 
 
The purpose of this strategy is to bring about positive change to the organisations use of Digital services and IT. As with any change 
programme there are risks associated with delivery. However, there are also risks associated with doing nothing. 
 
Risks associated with change Risks associated with no change 
There will be disruption to the way things are done Systems will become outdated and not able to deliver 
The change may not deliver the expected outcome An outdated and unoptimised system will be more expensive to run 
The change may be costlier than originally anticipated Outdated systems can pose a cyber security risk 

 
A number of assumptions have been made when writing this strategy. 

1. Where the market is required to provide a solution, there will be a solution available. 
2. With the right training and support, our staff will be able to gain the relevant digital competencies to work effectively 
3. Standards used to design and protect services will remain stable 
4. The cloud will remain an accessible and safe location for the hosting of digital services and data 
5. Legislation will not be a hindrance to delivery 

  

P
age 29



18 | P a g e

 
Delivery Plan 
 
Year 1 – 2022 to 2023 

 Areas for Action 
1.1 Conduct review of end user device hardware in use by staff and replace with standardised laptops. Take into account desktop 

estate and office layout and identify any requirements for accessibility. 

1.2 Introduce Enterprise Architect capability within the Digital and IT team. 

1.3 Fully map out all systems, technologies, and assets to use as a base for identifying improvements and establishing a carbon 
footprint of the technology estate. 

1.4 Create business case for improvements to cyber security. 

1.5 Implementation of new website platform and content management system. 
1.6 Build career pathways for our digital, technology and data team. 

1.7 Develop digital leadership capability within the council. 

1.8 Modernise our mobile device handling and software deployment so staff are properly supported. 

1.9 Transition to new Geographical Information System. 

 
  

P
age 30



19 | P a g e

Year 2 – 2023 to 2024 
 Specific Action 
2.1 Review of all back-office systems to establish cloud preparedness. 

2.2 Build out capability of the cloud hosting platform to ensure performance is scalable and meets requirements. 

2.3 Work with business areas on a programme of work to establish documented data standards and staff training materials. 

2.4 Carry out a full data privacy review, followed by a data cleansing and reduction programme. 

2.5 Redesign our internal processes and governance structures, freeing up officer time for high-value tasks and frontline services. 

2.6 Bring in new service desk software and processes. 

2.7 Partner with business areas across the council to co-create service transformation plans enabled by technology. 
 
 
 
 

P
age 31



20 | P a g e

Year 3 – 2024 to 2025 
 Specific Action 
3.1 Commence migration of major business applications to the cloud. 
3.2 Deliver an ongoing portfolio of improvements to council systems, corporate technology, and removal of sub-optimal or paper-

based council processes. 
3.3 Build a business analytics function. 
3.4 Review projects delivered in years 1 and 2 and identify gaps which need addressing. 

 
  

P
age 32



21 | P a g e

Year 4 – 2025 to 2026 
 Specific Action 
3.1 Migrate any residual on premise systems to third party hosting arrangements. 
3.2 Implement follow up work identified during project reviews. 

 
 

P
age 33



22 | P a g e

Links to other GBC strategies 
The council’s Digital and IT Strategy is intrinsically linked in several council policies and 
strategies, putting technology at the heart of all our activities: 

 
 
 
 
 

 

IT
 a

nd
 D

ig
ita

l S
tr

at
eg

y 
20

22
-

20
26

Corporate Plan

Medium-term Financial Strategy

Procurement Strategy

Capital Strategy

Customer Service and Access Policy

Equality Objectives

Risk Management Strategy

Workforce Development Plan

Page 34



23 | P a g e

Contact details 
For further information about the council’s IT & Digital Strategy and its actions, please contact 
the Assistant Director (IT and Transformation) at darren.everden@gravesham.gov.uk

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Public 
Key Decision: No 

Gravesham Borough Council 

Report to: Overview Scrutiny Committee 
 

Date: 9 June 2022 

Reporting officer: Chris Wakeford, Committee Services Officer (Scrutiny) 
 

Subject: Member Training 2021-22 - Annual Report 

Purpose and summary of report:  
To provide the Overview Scrutiny Committee with a summary of the training that has taken 
place for all elected Members during the 2021-22 municipal year. 

Recommendations: 
Members are asked to note the Member Training attendance statistics and feedback for the 
2021-22 municipal year. 

Key Implications: 
Item Implications 
Legal There are no legal implications resulting from this report. The 

Constitution sets out the roles and responsibilities of the Overview 
Scrutiny Committee and the activities set out within this report are 
in line with this. The Member Training and Development Plan 
does take into consideration the need for Members of the 
Planning Committee to be trained at least every two years and this 
was built into the overall plan accordingly. 

Finance and Value for 
Money 

A Member Training budget is in place with a budget of £4,750 
each year which remains constant over the life of the Medium-
term Financial Plan. All training provided for Members which 
incurs a cost will be delivered within this budget. For the 2021-22 
period the scheduled external training sessions were postponed 
due to Covid-19 / unavailability; therefore the majority of training 
was delivered in-house and was cost neutral. 

Corporate Plan The work of the Overview Scrutiny Committee is cross-cutting and 
therefore is likely to contribute towards all elements of the 
council’s Corporate Plan. 

Climate Change  There are no climate change implications associated with this 
report. 

 
 

Page 37 Agenda Item 7



2

1. Introduction 

1.1 This report provides Members with a summary of the training that has taken place 
throughout the 2021-22 municipal year. 

2. Member Training 2021-22 

2.1 During 2021-22, eleven training sessions have been provided to Members on a 
wide range of topics.  The table below provides a summary of the level of 
attendance at the training sessions throughout the year: 

Training Session Number of 
attendees 

Proportion of 
Members attending 

Communications and Social Media 13 30% 

Risk Management 19 43% 

Council Procedure Rules and 
Interpreting the Constitution 

29 66% 

Planning Refresher 20 45% 

Homelessness 24 54% 

Housing Allocations 12 27% 

Prevent Awareness  13 30% 

Licensing (Part 1) 14 32% 

Treasury Management 13 30% 

Licensing (Part 2) 10 23% 

Fraud Awareness 8 18% 

Please note: the training listed above does not include any ad hoc training or one     
to one sessions that have been provided to Members. 

2.2 Appendix two to the report provides further details of the Members that attended 
each session. 

3. Feedback  

3.1 Overall, the feedback received for the training sessions was positive, with the 
majority of Members finding the sessions useful and informative. Members also 
highlighted that the content of some of the sessions had been a lot to consume in 
one sitting and would benefit from being spread out over two sessions. Members 
also suggested that it would be beneficial to receive some of the information / text 
in advance of the session to equip attendees with a good background knowledge. 
This information has been fed back to officers / trainers to assist improvements in 
training provision going forward. 

4. Member Training 2022-23 and Member Induction 2023-24 

4.1 Members will continue to receive training throughout 2022-23 on an ad hoc basis 
as required and work has already begun on the Member Induction Programme 

Page 38



3

2023-24 which will be delivered in the wake of the Borough Elections scheduled 
for 4 May 2023, further details on the Member Induction Programme will be 
shared with Members in due course.  

5. Appendices 

5.1 The following documents are to be published with the report:  

Appendix 2: Member Training Attendance Record 2021-22 

6. Background Documents  

6.1 There are no background documents. 

 

Lead Officer:  Chris Wakeford - Committee Services Officer (Scrutiny) 

Email:  christopher.wakeford@gravesham.gov.uk  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39

mailto:christopher.wakeford@gravesham.gov.uk


4

 
 
 

Secondary Implications  
Risk Assessment There is a risk to the council should Members not attend the training that is being 

provided. The training being provided will assist Members in their roles as 
councillors and in some cases, specifically in relation to their roles on Committees. 
As such, there is a risk that if Members do not attend the training they may not be 
properly trained in an area and therefore this may affect their ability to make sound 
decisions. 

A data protection impact assessment (DPIA) should be carried out at the start of 
any major project involving the use of personal data or if you are making a 
significant change to an existing process.  
a. Does the project/change being recommended through this paper involve the 

processing of personal data or special category data or criminal offence data?  
A definition of each type of data can be found on the Information 
Commissioner’s Office website via the above links. 
No 

b. If yes to question a, have you completed and attached a DPIA including Data 
Protection Officer advice? 
N/A 

Data Protection 
Impact Assessment 
 

c. If no to question b, please seek advice from your nominated DPIA assessor or 
the Information Governance Team at gdpr@medway.gov.uk. 
N/A 

a. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper have 
potential to cause adverse impact or discriminate against different groups in the 
community? If yes, please explain answer. 
No 

b. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper make a 
positive contribution to promoting equality? If yes, please explain answer. 
No 

Equality Impact 
Assessment 

In submitting this report, the Chief Officer doing so is confirming that they have 
given due regard to the equality impacts of the decision being considered, as noted 
in the table above 

Crime and Disorder There are no Crime and Disorder implications with this report. 

Digital and website 
implications 

There are no digital and website implications with this report. 

Safeguarding 
children and 
vulnerable adults 

There are no specific safeguarding children and vulnerable adults implications with 
this report. Some Members have, as part of the training plan, received training on 
Safeguarding and a further session is planned for 2022-23 

Page 40

https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/key-definitions/what-is-personal-data/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/special-category-data/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/criminal-offence-data/
mailto:gdpr@medway.gov.uk


 
 

 

Appendix 2 

MEMBER TRAINING ATTENDANCE RECORD 2021-2022 

 

JULY 2021 
01 July 2021 Communications and Social Media Training 
Cllrs in attendance: Labour Conservative Independent 
Total: 13 John Burden  

Lee Croxton 
Sarah Gow 
Lyn Milner 
Shane Mochrie-Cox 
Elizabeth Mulheran 
Tony Rana 
Brian Sangha 
Peter Scollard 
Gurbax Singh 
Narinderjit Singh Thandi 
Jenny Wallace 
 

Leslie Hills  

 (11 Members) (1 Members) (0 Members) 
 
12 July 2021 Risk Management Training 
Cllrs in attendance: Labour Conservative Independent 
Total: 19 John Burden 

John Caller 
Sarah Gow 
Baljit Hayre 
Nirmal Khabra 
Lyn Milner 
Shane Mochrie-Cox 
Tony Rana 
Brian Sangha 
Gurbax Singh 
Narinderjit Singh Thandi 
Lauren Sullivan 
 

Derek Ashenden 
Dakota Dibben 
Leslie Hills 
Bob Lane 
Jordan Meade 
Frank Wardle 
 

Harold Craske 
 

 (12 Members) (6 Members) (1 Members) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 41



 
 
 
14 July 2021 Council Procedure Rules and Interpreting the Constitution 
Cllrs in attendance: Labour Conservative Independent 
Total: 29 John Burden 

Gurdip Bungar 
Aaron Elliott 
Brian Francis 
Sarah Gow 
Baljit Hayre 
Nirmal Khabra 
Lyn Milner 
Shane Mochrie-Cox 
Emma Morley 
Tony Rana 
Christina Rolles 
Lenny Rolles 
Peter Scollard 
Brian Sangha 
Gurbax Singh 
Narinderjit Singh Thandi 
Steve Thompson 
Jenny Wallace 
 

Derek Ashenden 
Ejaz Aslam 
Dakota Dibben 
Gary Harding 
Bob Lane 
Jordan Meade 
Denise Tiran 
Frank Wardle 

Harold Craske 
Leslie Pearton 

 (19 Members) (18 Members) (2 Members) 

 

 

SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
15 September 2021 Planning Refresher 
Cllrs in attendance: Labour Conservative Independent 
Total: 20 Gurdip Bungar 

Brian Francis 
Baljit Hayre 
Nirmal Khabra 
Shane Mochrie-Cox 
Emma Morley 
Elizabeth Mulheran 
Gurbax Singh 
Lauren Sullivan 
 

Derek Ashenden 
Ejaz Aslam 
Dakota Dibben 
Aaron Elliott 
Emma Elliott 
Gary Harding 
Leslie Hills 
Leslie Hoskins 
Jordan Meade 
Tony Rice 

Harold Craske 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(9 Members) (10 Members) (1 Members) 

 

Page 42



 
OCTOBER 2021 
 
13 October 2021 Homelessness 
Cllrs in attendance: Labour Conservative Independent 
Total: 24 Gurdip Bungar 

Dakota Dibben 
Sarah Gow 
Baljit Hayre 
Nirmal Khabra 
Christina Rolles 
Lenny Rolles 
Lyn Milner 
Shane Mochrie-Cox 
Elizabeth Mulheran 
Peter Scollard 
Brian Sangha   
Lauren Sullivan 
Jenny Wallace 
 

Derek Ashenden 
Helen Ashenden 
Ejaz Aslam 
Aaron Elliott 
Emma Elliott 
Gary Harding 
Leslie Hills 
Leslie Hoskins 
Diane Morton 
Frank Wardle 

 

 (14 Members) (10 Members) (0 Member) 
 
NOVEMBER 2021 
 
25 November 2021 Housing Allocations 
Cllrs in attendance: Labour Conservative Independent 
Total: 12 Gurdip Bungar 

Lee Croxton 
Brian Francis 
Lyn Milner 
Tony Rana 
Christina Rolles 
Lenny Rolles 
Peter Scollard 
Gurbax Singh 
Jenny Wallace 

 Harold Craske 
Leslie Pearton 

 (10 Members) (0 Members) (2 Members) 
 
DECEMBER 2021 
 
6 December 2021 Prevent Awareness 
Cllrs in attendance: Labour Conservative Independent 
Total: 13 Gurdip Bungar 

John Burden 
John Caller 
Lee Croxton 
Sarah Gow 
Nirmal Khabra 
Lyn Milner 
Peter Scollard 
Gurbax Singh 
 

Jordan Meade 
Tony Pritchard 
Frank Wardle 

Harold Craske 

 (9 Members) (3 Members) (1 Members) 
 
 

Page 43



 
 
JANUARY 2022 
 
11 January 2022 Licensing (Part 1) 
Cllrs in attendance: Labour Conservative Independent 
Total: 14 Gurdip Bungar 

John Caller 
Brian Francis 
Baljit Hayre 
Lyn Milner 
Shane Mochrie-Cox 
Elizabeth Mulheran 
Tony Rana 
Brian Sangha 
Steve Thompson 

Derek Ashenden 
Helen Ashenden 
Leslie Hoskins 
Denise Tiran 
Frank Wardle 

Leslie Pearton 
 

 (8 Members) (5 Members) (1 Member) 
 
 
18 January 2022 Treasury Management 
Cllrs in attendance: Labour Conservative Independent 
Total: 13 John Burden 

Sarah Gow 
Baljit Hayre 
Nirmal Khabra 
Shane Mochrie-Cox 
Elizabeth Mulheran 
Brian Sangha 
Gurbax Singh 
Narinderjit Singh Thandi 

Ejaz Aslam 
Dakota Dibben 
Aaron Elliott 
Leslie Hills 

 

 (9 Members) (4 Members) (0 Member) 

 
FEBRUARY 2022 
 
28 February 2022 Licensing (Part 2) 
Cllrs in attendance: Labour Conservative Independent 
Total: 10 Baljit Hayre 

Lyn Milner 
Brian Sangha 
Gurbax Singh 
Jenny Wallace 

Leslie Hills 
Bob Lane 
Denise Tiran 
Frank Wardle 

Leslie Pearton 

 (5 Members) (4 Members) (1 Members) 
 
 

APRIL 2022 
 
20 April 2022 Fraud Awareness 
Cllrs in attendance: Labour Conservative Independent 
Total: 8 Gurdip Bungar 

Brian Francis 
Sarah Gow 
Baljit Hayre 
Nirmal Khabra 
Gurbax Singh 
Jenny Wallace 

Denise Tiran  

Page 44



 (7 Members) (1 Members) (0 Members) 

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 IT and Digital Strategy 2022
	1.	Introduction
	1.1	Previously the council has had two separate strategies, one for Information Technology and one for Digital.
	1.2	The Information Technology Strategy covered infrastructure, such as servers, desktop and laptop computers, mobile devices and telephony. The IT Strategy also covered support of the councils business applications which underpin the delivery of services by all directorates.
	1.3	The Digital Strategy covered how IT is utilised, which included public facing systems (such as the website) and transformation of business applications to provide more efficient end to end processes and improved user experience for the public.
	1.4	Over time these two areas have increasingly overlapped such that it now makes sense to combine them both into a single overarching strategy.

	2.	The Strategy
	2.1	The overall aim of the strategy is to provide a clear direction of travel for the IT and Digital Teams in order to deliver the technology platforms required by the council.
	2.2	This direction is articulated via a number of Ambitions, Principles and Objectives.
	2.3	The contents of the strategy has taken into account the changes in working environment brought about by the Covid-19 pandemic, increasing expectation by our customers for technology focussed services, the impacts of our activity on climate change, improving resilience to a cyber-attack, and the move to new office accommodation in 2025/2026.
	2.4	During the life of the strategy, investment in IT and Digital will be required. Individual business cases will be built which will describe the changes in greater detail and identify sources of funding, any impacts on the Medium Term Financial Plan and IT Reserve.
	2.5	The portfolio holder for Digital and IT is the Leader of the Executive. The monitoring and reporting of our progress against the strategy will be regularly taken through the Corporate Management Team to the Leader of the Executive, Cabinet, and other committees where there is an overlap of interest (such as the Finance and Audit Committee, and the Performance and Administration Committee).
	2.6	In addition to this, council members will be briefed on the progress of implementing the strategy via annual training sessions.

	3.	Appendices
	3.1	The following documents are to be published with the report:
	IT & Digital Strategy 2022-2026

	4.	Background Documents
	4.1	There are no background documents.

	IT and Digital Strategy 2022-2026
	Information Technology and Digital Strategy
	2022-2026
	Foreword from the Leader
	Introduction
	The Corporate Plan has set out the scale of the council’s ambition and the core objectives and commitments required in delivering a Gravesham to be proud of. To be successful, it is vital that all corporate policies, strategies, and business plans are fully informed, designed and resourced to support the delivery of our corporate objectives. The Information Technology and Digital Strategy will underpin and support these objectives as part of the ‘Golden Thread’, a continuous cycle connecting the corporate aims, policy framework and delivery plans of the council, with the actions of Members, officers, and partners at all levels.
	Information Technology and Digital Together
	This strategy recognises the intrinsic link between Information Technology and Digital disciplines and brings them together to present a cohesive vision and set of objectives centred around two goals – transforming how Information Technology systems are used and reshaping how the Information Technology function provides its services.
	Understanding the Current Service
	Embracing Change

	Plan on a page
	Our Ambitions
	Our Principles
	Our Objectives
	Delivery Plan
	Year 1 – 2022 to 2023
	Year 2 – 2023 to 2024
	Year 3 – 2024 to 2025
	Year 4 – 2025 to 2026

	Links to other GBC strategies
	Contact details



	7 Member Training 2021-22 - Annual Report
	1.	Introduction
	1.1	This report provides Members with a summary of the training that has taken place throughout the 2021-22 municipal year.

	2.	Member Training 2021-22
	2.1	During 2021-22, eleven training sessions have been provided to Members on a wide range of topics.  The table below provides a summary of the level of attendance at the training sessions throughout the year:
	Please note: the training listed above does not include any ad hoc training or one     to one sessions that have been provided to Members.
	2.2	Appendix two to the report provides further details of the Members that attended each session.

	3.	Feedback
	3.1	Overall, the feedback received for the training sessions was positive, with the majority of Members finding the sessions useful and informative. Members also highlighted that the content of some of the sessions had been a lot to consume in one sitting and would benefit from being spread out over two sessions. Members also suggested that it would be beneficial to receive some of the information / text in advance of the session to equip attendees with a good background knowledge. This information has been fed back to officers / trainers to assist improvements in training provision going forward.

	4.	Member Training 2022-23 and Member Induction 2023-24
	4.1	Members will continue to receive training throughout 2022-23 on an ad hoc basis as required and work has already begun on the Member Induction Programme 2023-24 which will be delivered in the wake of the Borough Elections scheduled for 4 May 2023, further details on the Member Induction Programme will be shared with Members in due course.

	5.	Appendices
	5.1	The following documents are to be published with the report:
	Appendix 2: Member Training Attendance Record 2021-22

	6.	Background Documents
	6.1	There are no background documents.

	Appendix 2 Member Training attendance 2021-22




